Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources

MIMAROPA REGION
Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Office

February 14,2023

MEMORANDUM
FOR : The Regional Executive Director
DENR MIMAROPA Region
ATTENTION: The Chief, Licenses and Patents and Deeds Division
The Chief, Legal Services
FROM : The OIC-PENR Officer
SUBJECT REPORT ON THE ACTIONS TAKEN RE: CONCERNS OF MS.

MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS REGARDING LOT NOS.
478 AND 479, PLS 395 LOCATED AT CAMBUNANG,
BULALACAO ORIENTAL MINDORO

This refers to the letter of Ms. Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas concerning Lot Nos. 478 and
479, Pls 395 located at Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro.

Be informed that the matter was referred to CENRO Roxas. Hence, CENRO Roxas
submitted Completed Staff Work (CSW)' report clarifying all the queries of Ms. Bodegas
mentioned in her letter? dated November 15, 2022.

Further, this Office instructed CENRO Roxas to send a representative to attend on the
dialogue meeting on December 12, 2022 at Cambunang, Bulalacao Oriental Mindoro requested
by Ms. Bodegas. Based on the report® submitted by LMO II Rodel M. Montealegre, no one
among the farmers/occupants of the said lots arrived and even Ms. Bodegas did not attend.

Furthermore, on January 25, 2023, a letter* from Ms. Bodegas was received at PENR
Office requesting for a copy of Resolution issued by DENR Regional Office and this was
replied thru a letter’ dated January 26, 2023 informing Ms. Bodegas that she may secure the
copy of said Resolution at CENRO Roxas.

For information and records.

»

m%
Chief, Technical Services Division

In-Charge, Office of the PENRO
Tracking No.: 2212000522; 2302000205

1 Completed Staff Work (CSW) dated December 13, 2022 prepared by Special Investigator I Marie Ann F. Galit of CENRO Roxas is hereto
attached as Annex “A”

2 Letter dated November 15, 2022 from Ms. Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas addressed to Sec. Ma. Antonia Yulo-Loyzaga is hereto attached as
Annex “B”

3 Report dated January 23, 2023 submitted by LMO II Rodel M. Montealegre is hereto attached as Annex “C”

4 Letter dated January 25, 2023 from Ms. Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas is hereto attached as Annex “D”

5 Letter dated January 26, 2023 from OIC-PENRO Alan L. Valle addressed to Ms. Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas is hereto attached as Annex

TSD/RPS/Dhal
llang-ilang St., Sitio I, Suqui, Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro
DENR Contact Nos. (043) 288-3017, Tel. Fax No. 288-3006
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Department of ¥nvirontnent and Natural Resources
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VOIP: (043) 289-7118
Email: cenroroxasormindore@denr.gov.ph
December 14, 2022

MEMORANDUM s ".:‘:‘:"“""""""' o
FOR The OIC, PENR Officer S

-~ - . . RECEIVED B Vot o A

Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro 1

oaTE: | RS 2R N '

FROM The CENR Officer 0

Roxas, Oriental Mindoro
SUBJECT COMPLETE STAFF WORK (CSW)

RE: LETTER DATED NOVEMBER 15, 2022 FROM
MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS, PROVINCIAL
COORDINATOR MAGSASAKA PARTY LIST, SITIO TABUK,
POBLACION, BULALACAO, ORIENTAL MINDORO

In compliance with the memorandum dated November 21, 2022 regarding the above-
mentioned subject, forwarding herewith the Complete Staff Work (CSW) prepared by Special
Investigator I, Marie Ann F. Galit and attested by LMO [1I/OIC, RPS, Peterson F. Fabellon.

Please be informed that the undersigned concurs with the observations and
recommendations stated thereon.

For records and consideration.

Tracking No. 221 2000822

RPSMhe-Ann
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December 13, 2022

COMPLETE STAFF WORK (CSW)

SUBJECT:

RE: LETTER DATED NOVEMBER 15, 2022 FROM MARIANNE ARLENE S,
BODEGAS, PROVINCIAL COORDINATOR MAGSASAKA PARTY LIST, SITIO
TABUK, POBLACION, BULALACAO, ORIENTAL MINDORO

RECORDS VERIFICATION

The land subject by this letter is known as Lot Nos. 478 and 479, Pls-395 covered by DENR
Case No. 5445 & ADR Case No. 2022-1752040-0217 and located at Cambunang, Bulalacao,
Oriental Mindoro.

On August 9, 1993 a Resolution was signed by Regional Executive Director, Antonio G.
Principe over the DENR Case No. 5445 entitled “Insular Government Property Sales Application
(1.G.P.S.A.) No. 1604 and 1605 of Pedro Solis (deceased) now his Heirs, rep. by Pancho A. Solis,
Claimant-Protestants -versus- Sangguniang Barangay of Cambunang Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro
rep. by Renato de Guzman, claimant-Protestant -versus- F.P.A. No. (11I-12)106 of Aquilino de
Leon, and Pablo Baculinao, Jr. (deceased) now his Heirs, rep. by Elmo Baculinao, Applicants-
Respondents™ with the dispositive portion of which reads as follow:

“NOW THEREFORLE, with the foregoing facts and discussions on the matter the herein
case is, as it is hereby, RESOLVED in the manner provided, as follows: the (1.G.P.S.A.) application
Nos. 1604 and 1605 of Pedro Solis (deceased) now represented by his Heirs over Lot Nos. 478 and
479 is, as it is hereby, GIVEN DUE COURSE taking into consideration those arcas already
adjudicated to other persons in the Orders previously issued. The Free Patent Application of
Aquilino de Leon under F.P.A. No. (II-12) 106 is , as it is hereby REJECTED and the same
DROPPED from the rolls, the application of Pablo Baculinao, Jr. (deceased) now represented by
His Heirs is, as it is hereby also REJECTED and the same DROPPED from the rolls; the REQUEST
CLAIM of the Barangay (Cambunang) for a barangay site and open space for their use is, as it is
hereby SET ASIDE as the same is not proper in the premesis, however, with the instruction that
the same be referred to the CENR Office for another site identification and further action.”

A certification signed by Regional Executive Director, Wilfrido S. Pollisco dated June 9,
1994, stating that no Motion for Reconsideration/Appeal has been filed on the said Resolution.
Hence, the same had become Final and Executory.

Memorandum dated December 13, 2017 signed by OIC, Regional Director, Natividad Y.
Bernardino, CESE directing this office to implement the Resolution dated August 9, 1993 which
this office complied. The execution of order was conducted on December 5. 2018 because the
parties involved only complied on that day for, they have many reasons in attending the said
invitation.

On March 18, 2022, the Heirs of Pedro Solis undergo ADR proceedings for some
issues/conflict arose during the disposition of their land. They come up for an amicable settlement
on March 24, 2022 and an Order of Amicable Settlement was issued on September 6, 2022 and
signed by In-Charge, PENRO Oriental Mindoro, Alma E. Gibe.

RPS/Mhe-Ann
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GROUND VERIFICATION

The area is now in the center of Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro. Some
portions of the area were utilized as rice/onion fields, residential area, school, church and some
government facilities.

The entry of the people in the area was based from the purchased from Mr. Elmo Baculinao
and some of the claimants protested the IGPSA of Mr. Pedro Solis, and they have the knowledge
of the status of the land and very aware of the consequences of the outcome of the case because it
is a public knowledge in the barangay that the land is covered by a case. When the resolution comes
out, during a meeting in the barangay hall of Cambunang with LGU of Barangay Cambunang rep.
by Captain Alma Nool, together with Engr. Eleanette Dayanghirang, Bulalacao LGU rep. by
Municipal Assessor Regin Dimaano, and authorized representatives in this office, it was agreed
that a subdivision survey be conducted for the proper disposition of the land, some of the occupants
willingly agreed and will pay the land they occupied with the heirs of Pedro Solis. The LGU of
Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro willingly agreed to paid the site of the school area by paying the
service of the Geodetic Engineer, Engr. Dayanghirang.

OBSERVATIONS

On the letter of Ms. Bodegas she wants to clarify the following;

I. Batay sa naisumiting aplikasvon ni Pedro Solis taong 1936 sva ay akiwal na nakaposisyon
sa nasabing lupang sakahan, nagkaroon ng disisyon na pinal ngunit pina-ulit hanggang sa
ito ay naglapsed; Kung naglapsed na ang itinakdang panahon para sa nasabing aplikasyon
bakit nanatiling nagpakilala si Pancho Solis na sya and may-ari ng nasabing lupang
sakahan?

2. Sa nakasaad sa nasabing resolution hindi ko nakita na nakasaad na ang binigyvan ng
Karapatan ng ahensyang may saklaw ay si Pancho Solis, na mangulekta ng milyon ¢ halaga
ng salapi mula sa mga magsasaka, sapilitang nagpa-alis ng mga aktwal na nagsasaka sa
nasabing lupang sakahan at nanakot sa mga aktwal na nakaposisyon, sinamantala nya ang
kakulangan ng kaalaman ng mga magsasaka para sila ay davain, likuhin; 1 anong bibigyan
pa rin ng ahensyang due course and aplickasyon ni Pedro Solis? (Kalakip po ang
kasunduan ng bayaran ng pera na kinulekta ni Pancho Solis)

3. Batay na rin sa ginamit na batayvan ng aplikasyon Act. No. 3038 na may provision of Act
No. 2874 na may aktwal na pagkultiba pamomosisyon, sa pagkakataong ito simula ng
masumiti ang nasabing aplikasyon walang pamomosisyon o pagkultiba mula sa aplikante
kundi and pananamantala ng mga aktawal na nakaposisyon aktwal na nagsasaka, Ano ang
maging kaparusahang igawad ng ahensyang may saklaw sa pananamantala ng aplikante
o nagpapakilalang may-ari ng lupaing hindi naman pala totoo?

4. Sa kasalukuyang sitwasyon, sino ang mas higit na bibigyan ng pagkakataong magkaroon
ng titulo sa public land yong aktwal na nagsasaka o yong aplikasyon na nanamantala?

RPS/Mhe-Anun



Republic of the Philippines

‘ Uepartmem ofEnvironiment and Natural Resources
ﬁ MIMAROPA Region
——
-——————
p— e

Community Environment and Natural Resources Office
Camia St., San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro
Contact No.: 0917 876 9985 / 0917 169 0232
VOIP: (043) 289-7118
Email: cenroroxasormindoro@denr.gov.ph

i

Answer for No. I- It is very clear in the Resolution dated August 9, 1993, that on records
of the case it shows that Pedro Solis filed his Insular Government Property Sales Application
(LG.P.S.A.) on October 10, 1936 over two (2) parcels of land under his Tax Declaration No. 336
and 390 with an approximate total area of 40.0000 hectares. Prior to his application, Mr. Solis
occupied and cultivated the area starting from the year 1920 which he utilized as grazing land and
planted some seasonal crops and other plants. But it was temporarily stopped and was forfeited by
the Commonwealth of the Philippines against Mr. Pedro Solis under Criminal Case No. 2057
sometime in 1935,

Because of the forfeiture of the land, it became private property of the Commonwealth of
the Philippines, disposable only through Sales or Lease to qualified persons as provided for under
Act No. 3038. It is for this reason and his desire to have the land back in his possession that Mr.
Pedro Solis filed his 1.G. P. S. A. application over the two (2) parcels of land. He paid for and
perfected his application on November 5, 1936 in the Manila Office of the Bureau of Lands and
the same was given due course.

Answer for No. 2- The collection of money between Mr. Pancho Solis, representative of
Heirs of Pedro Solis and some farmers is out of our control. Also, it is not stated in the Resolution,
thus, any conflicts arose on such collections of money is out of the jurisdiction of this office. In
regards with the application of Mr. Pedro Solis (deceased) now his heirs, this office will follow and
execute the Resolution because it is final and executory and the heirs already agreed amicably on
how to dispose the land.

Answer for No. 3- As stated on the answer for No. 1, 2™ paragraph which is self-
explanatory. It is already paid and perfected by the original applicant but he had to answer all the
number of claims over the land which he waited for resolution until he died in 1974 without seeing
the light. How can we question the significance of the final resolution that took for almost half of
a century.

Itis very clear in the records that the heirs rep. by Mr. Pancho Solis deliberately following
up the order of this case and when the time come and everything was favored to them, a mere letter
from a Provincial Coordinator Magsasaka Party List, Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas stating that the
Heirs of Pedro Solis have no rights over the land which they fight from 1936 up to this time?

Answer for No. 4- Who had the better right? The Heirs of Pedro Solis or the actual
occupants who entered the land in good faith or bad faith? As we can see in the attachments of the
letter of Ms. Bodegas, the “Sinumpaang Salaysay” of the actual occupant wherein they entered the
land in questions from Mr. Baculinao which is the same who opposed with the application of the
deceased Pedro Solis.

As stated in the page 4 and 5 of Resolution dated August 9, 1993, it is very clear that Pedro
Solis has the right to own and acquire the lands because the alleged transfers of the subject land is
not valid that means without force and effect which is submitted by the protestors Aquilino de Leon
and Pablo Baculinao as evidence to substantiate their respective claims. The significance of these
documents can not be overlooked as they represent the very source of all the so-called series of
transfers from which the rights of the other claimants emanate. The records shows that the
documents/deeds were all executed and perfected in the year 1975 while Mr. Pedro Solis met his
demise sometime in 1974,

RPS/Mhe-Ann
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The mother instruments having been discredited and declared as not competent evidence of
th2 subsidiary and subsequent Deeds emanating from these originals will therefore surely fail and
suffer the stigma of doubt.

The actual occupants representing by Ms. Marianne Arlene Bodegas were the one who
benefited and were given the better attention which resulted in the diminution of the original total
arga of the subject land. They improved the land, yes, but they are also the one who benefited from
it, while the original claimant and his heirs fights their rights and waited for the final order of the
case.

The original applicant, Mr. Pedro Solis paid and perfected his application on November 5,
1936, he and his heirs battled their rights on the land from 1936 up to this date. As the holder of
such sales application and/or claim to this writing can be presumed of private ownership. On the
part of Ms. Bodegas, using Magsasaka Party List and giving false hope to the farmers cannot
probably outlive the sentiment of private persons long denied of good governance, for it is truly
the state at the instance of DENR who can uphold and protect the right of private persons.

RECOMMENDATION

Considering the above-circumstances, it is hereby recommended that Ms. Marianne Arlene
Bodegas must submit substantial evidence in claiming such land, and submit necessary documents
a; stated in DAO 2016-31. Further, it is also recommended that the Order of Amicable Settlement

between the Heirs of Pedro Solis be executed in order to exercise social justice.

For information and consideration.

Prepared by:
§ Attested by:

MARIEJANN F. GALIT
Special Investigator | PET

F. FABELLON

> RPS

PS/Mhe-Ann
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1.6.P.6.A. No. 1604 and 1605
FEDRO SOLIS (Deceased), Now his
Heirs, Rep. by PANCHO A. S0OLIS

Lw-.'li R0 R G 2 b ST =

SANGGUMIANG RARANGAY OF

CAMBUNANG, BULALACADC, » File-T79%-T, Camour &

ORIENTAL, MINDORO

Rep. by RENATO DE GUZMAN Bulialaca Seh Ml i ;
Claimant-Protastant

FaPuR- Mo, (1I1=123 106
AGUTLING DE LEON, and

applicant—~Resgoncsnt

FABLO BACOLINAD, JR. (Deceased)
Now his Heirs, Rep. by ELMO BACUL INAD.

Prviwva 5 & P D e
HOD L LCanmus™re Frede

:RESQLUTION

Submitted for resolution before this office is the
case Iinvolving the™ c¢ldims of the Heirs of  Pedro Solis.
Aguiiinoe De Leon; Heirs of Pablo Baculinao, Jr. and- the
Barangay of Cumbunang. Bulalacac, Criental Mindoro over Lots
Neos. 478 and 479 of Pls-295-D which 1is more particulariy
identified as| the area covered by the Insular Governmen
Property Sales Application (I.G.P.3.A.) Nos. 1604 and 1605 i1
the name of Fedfo Solis. S

-

i}

-t

as.
.

~

) Records of the case shows that Pedro Solis. n
“deraased, fited his Insular Government Property Sail
Application (I.G.P.S.A.) on October 10. 1936 over two (
parcels cf land -under--his. K Tax Declaration No. 336 valued at
P 615.36 _and Teax Declaration No. 390 valued at P  1,200.00
with =~ and approximate total area ™™f 40.000 hectares with the

o~
[

ta
~ i)

following boundaries, North by Amamaic Creek: East by
property of Eliseo Cabagay: South by property of Quintin B.
Cay and West by the Cawacat River. The corresponding

application was forwarded to the Bureau of Lands --Office in
Manila .for further action, which up te this date hag noxn

a
D€$n properly acted upon.

Prior to this application of Mr..Pedro Solis. the
land in question was the subject of his occupation and
cultivation starting from the year 1920 went he first set
foot on the same. The same records reveals that the area was
first utilized by the claimant as grazing land and
subsequently planted to with some seasonal crops and oiher
plant=s. Such possession and occupation of the land by PFedro
Solis was temporarily stopped when the same was forfeited by
the Commonwealth of the Philippines by virtue of a Writ of
Execution over the area as a consequence of a Penalty imposed



upon Pedro Solis in & Court Case fileqd against him in

1 1 C ’ y 4 L2
(:1 mina ase 1"0 . ..:05; fO]: ¥ ) 1 leqlal ‘)()ssess 10N Of d, namai lP
v

_ ) The forfeiture of *the land subject of the Wyl
made  the same private pProperty of the Commonwea] :

?hll}pplnes, disposable only through Sales o; Lease to
guallfzgd persons as provided for under Act ﬁo -%0°£“-I¥ Yo
for th}s reason and his desire to have the Iana Ea:ﬂ in‘ hE;
possession that Mr. Pedra Solis filed his f-ﬂ BoSA
application over the above-ment inned barcels ofsland:-‘ B
Having ai for and prerfect =] 11 1073 :
November 5, 1936-inp:h2 &ghi?é'ﬁkf?;e‘ted i manoaetan. on
g2
i

:he Same was given due course. ihus., on December 7. 1936.-uh%
wirector of Lands directed the Distriect Land Qfficer of
Calapan, Oriental Mindore to conduct a preliﬁinaf§
investigation of the land covered by the described
appi;catigg. The desired report of investigation can not be
submitted “on time for reason that during all those times a
ngmber of claims over the same area were received by the
District Office which needed immediate resolution. Thus on
June 30, 1940, the District Lanmd Office of Calapan. Oriental
Mindoro forwarded to the Director of Lands in Manila the
investigation report of Junior Pubiie Land Inspecto
Indalencic Nable Jose who recommended forward action on  the
Same .

: From 1940 to. October 6., 1950 no concrets
development. .were recorded.-in connection with the case, save
for the constant follow-ups of the applicant of his claims +o
which the Chief, Public Lands Division replied with an Orier
for him to apply for an I.G.P.S.A.. & thing ‘that he hag
‘elready longwcomplied with, and for the local Tands office to
investigate and appraise. £

%% R =
The~ land in question was not without any other
problem durifig the years that followed while the same was
pending. dn the lands offices cancerned. There were a number
of - claims that cropped out: like the claims of the Heirs of
Agapito Boyo which was resoclved amicably as per the Order
iegsued November 26, 1937. There was also the claim of Vicente
Magallanes,the resolution’of which was contained .in asimilar
Order dated June 30,. 1940. In May 1, 1956 the most
cypntroversial problem of them all that came across *hisz
particular land came about when Mr. Pedro’ Solis wrote s
letter to -then President Rameon Magsaysay about the intrusion
into his land of one Antonio Mallen. He reported that ths
gaid fellow has introduced some improvemnts therein and that
he has also Tax Declared the same in his own name. The
question. however, was resolved by the withdrawal of Antonio
Mallen of his claim in an affidavit dated April 27. 195% he
executed for the purpose. An Order was likewise, issued on
January 19, 1961 deciding the issues and clearing the «claim
of Pedro Solis with regards that of Antonic Mallen. It
worthy to note, that in this series of problems
the claim of Pedro Sclis, all the Orders issued i
with these case are one in saying that the IGPS
Solis can be given rurther due course.

i
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on April 4 1963, the <Chief, Legal va%?zu;

“hi 1 and went Division way @ A

informed the <Chief, uand‘Mgnugeyegé »igzz,und yJanuary -

{etter that the Orders dated Juneo. : : D ok

461 giving due course to the IGPSA applicatio ’ o e

i dre LQnQi; ovey lands at Cawacat, Bulalgcao.f Jfoilgﬁ-
ey o DO YS - i ) iy '-" o e @ 'tC’r’y. A "series © >

s bhecome Final andl execu ' e

y;“rhz claimant, as well a3, 1ettqr/f§om the "Buﬁ§§:

?3 ﬁanxTa vo the Calapan Qffice ard vice vggg; wf%;

dvrknﬂ the the period. Thus. on July 24. 196 .d ur;

ral 5i§isiQn once again, wrote a Ie;ter adreﬁse .(;;

Chie -iani Management Division reiterating F?e ”t?i%;[i

and exscuteory nature of the two (2) above-méntionad P?“"'f;

t:%a@;g'anﬁ'?urther giving due coursg to the application of

Pedro Solis.

#iving due course to the application, a req?est fg:
vestigation and appraisal ‘cf the land in question was gna“.
amd on September 26, 1968. Land Investigator Damaso O: gqx%
submitted his veport on the matter. The corre&pgnll?%
sment of the area was also made by the Munlclpa
surer of San Pedro (now Bulalacao) Consorcio L. Amgzxo%
. Pedro Solds was advised to pay the assessed valu?‘ of .i
€20.00 and the provisional permit fee of P 20.00, Dboth oI

-

which he complied with as evidenced by the Official Receipts
N;-' 411408 dated November 5, 1968 and 632572 dated March 8

vegpectively.

s e Pedro 3Sclis the original applicant
1
-

sizimant  under .JGPSA Nos. 1604 and 1605 died in 1874 due >
o1d  age without¥ seeing fne Light, 50 ta speak of WNiZ arcwe

pplication.

YFor quite sometime ‘the. representatives of the

claimant, have been following-up the caseh“bhich up to now
has not -yet been finally decided. Thus, on November 11, 1376,

thie Chief. Claime and Conflict Section of the Bureau of Lands

anilag wrote a letter addressed to the District-_Land
=3 SRS 5 Roxas,.. Oriental Mindoro to conduct’' further

“On the sSubject matter ta ascertain the true and
te  obtaining ™™ in  the premises due to the
eports and recommendations already submitted.

.quﬁ

£

1on
coYyaect fao
contlicting v

. And for the nth time the District Land Officer of
Roxas. Oriental Mindoro requested for certified copies of the

the records of the case from the Bureau of Lands Office
Mani’

vhier of
:
H

in
on March 18, 1976 and August 27, 1977 to which the
the Records Division willingly responded to in March
77.'During the interregnum, no action was forthcoming
Noweveyr, because on May 16, 19%1 after constant follow-ups by
the Heirs of Pedro Solis and after the lapse of about two (2)
decades, again the CENR Office of Roxas, Oriental Mindore
requested for certified copies of the very same records
already forwarded to the local office in the above—noted
cage. Two (2) days earlier a Protest was submitted by the
rexidents of Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro,
repregsented here by Leopoldo Panum, Renato De Guzman, - Serapio
iules  and Romualdez Cabrillos. against the Application for
ree  Fatent of Aquilino De Leon and Pedro Solis under FPA-
il=1z2—-10c. Lot No. 473, Fls-395-D and FPA-9-2585, Lot No.
7. P1s-395-D. respectively,
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The investigation of the case was assigned rto
Hearing Officer Leon A, Abad of the CENR Office at Roxas,
Oriental Mindoro. Investigation and hearing were made and set
inmtmediataly with all the parties properly represented. At
woulary inspection of the subjiect area was also made on August
17, 1991. Land Management Officer III/Hearing Officer Leon A.
Ahad submitted hig report on October 7, 1991, which was also
T ded to the regional office for proper evaluation and
apmropriate acttaion.
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The significance of a final resolution of this
particular case  can not be over emphasized because of the
. i >f  time that-it took for this questicn to finally
its conclusion, Half of a century in the waiting ig no

: 2specilally i1f one who ardously waged battle to claim §nd
possess  Lhe subject land is not fortunate enough to see its
conclusive end. Death has intervened in the meantime. during
the pendency  of this case and no amount of worldly
restitution  is  better than to put to rest the whole
proceedings as do the original parties of thies case in their
Oown respective graves.

'

Going over the records.of this case will reveal
that this has dragged on for yearrs due to the indecisiveness
»¥  those tasked to act on the same. It is also clear that
cther claimants and pretenders to the land were the cnes wheo
menefited and were given the bernter attention which resulted
=% the diwinution of the original total area of the subjeon
-xrd. The gquestion now, is however, not the oid issu=s
at.lachasd to the original claim: but rather new and collatar:

t 4~ 3 8
nature. To Dbe resolved now is the claims of the
ggunlang  Dayan of Cambunang, the claims o' Aquiline D=
Leon add that of Pablo Baculinao which are all oppoged to the
1.G.P.E'A. Nos. 1604 and 1605 of, now deceased. Pedre Solis.
which was filed in October 10, 1938 over .an area of over 40
hectares. ~

: ihe - actual resolution of this case is not’” at™~all
that difficult as the iSsues can be limited to only twe (2);
First., in the issue of whether or not Pedro Solis has the
right te oWn and acqguire the land as per his I.G.P.S.A.

afplication, and Second, whether the alleged transfers of the .

o g 0,

Subject land that took place valid and with force and effect

°r__not. The answers to these two 1ssues  will definitely
resojve the other collateral issues currently besetting the

RS, - -

Going  over the decumentary evidences of the parties
sulmitied 7o  substantiate their respective claims we came
ote TR 2 particular papers worth digcussing in this case.

these documents is the alleged "Affidavit of

Quitclaim” dated February 15, 1975 executed b Claimant Pedro .
55115 3n Tavor of Antonio Mallen, his erEswﬁxie adversary in

this case. Another 15 the submitted "Deed of Absolute Sale"

dated March 4, 1975 executed b Antonio Mallen in favor of
EEBIO F. Baculinao, Jr. Which was sanctioned and ratified in
the same instrument Y aimant Pedro Solis. e ontrac o
Divide Lot No. 479, PIs-305<D" . by and between Claimant Pedro
=wlis o and Claimant Aquilino De Leon dated August 18 1975 is

aigo cited here. The significance of these three "Deeds" can




not be overlook as they represent the very source of all the
- called series of transfers from which the rights of the
other claimant emanates.. The efficacy and/or validity of
Lhege conveyances will undoubtedly bear upon thne ultimate of
T he rights of the parties in this case. Taking this as= a
basis for the resolution of the case 1s a sound judgment

considering that it will determine once and for all the ,

respective rights of the parties. The question that may be/
w2d therefore is whether wor not the above-mentioned Deeds’

Qere all vaTidly executsd and thus have force and effect. TO

this we answer in the negative as the records will show that _

Ciaimant Pedro Solis met his demise sometime in 1974, whitTe
tFhe  aboveé Deeds "Wére HTT suxei-gtaed and perfécted in thé vyear
It is out of this worid to have the dsad rise from the
to sign and execute an instrument against his own
3 2rast. It is alseo said thar the dead tell no lies and this
articular case is & classic example.

The mother instruments having been discredited and
dezclared as not competent as evidence the subsidiary and
subsequent Deeds emanating from these ariginals Wikl
therefore surely fail and suffer the stigma of doub:.
Questioned decuments have no place in this Proceedings a=

brove nothing buf the futility of the case being pursuesd
the proponents and the rescort to artificialities ig tn=
1 of resigﬁ and hopelessness. Worth. mentioning is +<:he
egard of the technicalities of the law with regards €9
f the instruments ir <hs=

P
gxscution  and recording
s

Netarial Books of the Notarie

ed conveyances made

" With the issues of the al 3
favor of the other parties ts the e cleared and remcives,
we now move on to the other issue of the present claim by tre
Barmngax’of Cambunany . Priority is the issue to be address
e

in this particular aspect of the case as the claim of %
Barangay is a new and recent additicon to the already ages o1«
“case of the 1930's. The resolution of the IGPSA. issue must
first be made before any question on new issu® cafi~ be
tackled. The “claim that the needs of the Barangay takes
precedent  over that of the private interest of the claimant
" i3 not well placed as there is nothing to talk about had the
sregent case been earlier resolved and terminated. The only
reason why the Barangay was able to come into the picture is
the  case took over half a century to decide. The Barangay
using its public personality is now trying to impose its will
upon  the rights of private persons .long denied in the
process. The respect of private rights must be upheld and
protacted with no less than the State and its

instrumentalities taking the lead.

NOW THEREFORE, with the foregoing facts and
discussions on the matter the herein case 1is, as it is
hereby, RESOLVED in the manner provided, as follows: the
I.6G.P.5.A. application Nos. 1604 and 1605 of Pedro Solis
(deceased) now represented by his Heirs over Lots No. 478 and
479 1s, as it is hereby, GIVEN FURTHER DUE COURSE taking ihtc
consideration those areas already adjudicated to other
I in  the Orders previously issued. The Free Pater
ation of Aquilino De Lecn under F.P.A. No. (III-i2) 1

106




am it 1 hersby REJECTED and the same DROPPED- from  :the
Chr appligation of Pabic Dacuiinao, Jr, (deceasedy- DOV

L
bv Wis Hedirs is. as 1t is herely alkso RE
: : DROEPED from L2 voils; the REQUEST/CLAIM %6
ancay  (Cambuneng) for a & igay site and open space  for
ir use iz, as it is hereby SET 'ASIDE as che game’ ¥s  not

o the premises, howewvey . with the 4ntrucﬂicn %&ﬁ&a hﬁ-
£ thn SENT Qffice :

furthey aotaer”

for

4o ORDERED. :

W




REFUBRLIC OF THE PHILIFPINES
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT
AND NATURAL RESOURCES
--—'"I- TEGIONAL OFFICE NO. 1V
e 1515 Roxas Blwvd., Manila
-

FO WHOM 1T MAY CONCERM:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT

cH.P.5.A. No. 1604 and 1 HOS, Fadro
IS4k ™ LlEY Py ’ L~ 8 - b - L i o I L B S S . 4 bk
Protestants VBN GUS - Bangqgunlang Bar angav oy Cambunana .
Bulalacan, {(iriental Mindoro, e . byy Ferrnat o be Guzman,
Claimant —fFr otest ant EET A ARE F.F.A. N . {I111~122) 106,
Agul lano De LLeon, Mpplicant-Respondent, and, Pabio Bacul inano,
N e Mow 28} Heirs, Rep. Elmo Haculiinao, Applicant
Feopandent ™ i » Final arndd
Enec
¢ ; |

June 9
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Repubtit Ui the Phihppines

e Department of Environment and Natural Resources
e mame - MIMAROPA Region

December 13, 2017 .

——

MEMORANDUM

TO The QIC, PENR Officer
Oriental Mindoro

ATTN - The OIC, CENR Officer
Roxas, Oriental Mindoro

FROM The OIC, Regional Director

SUBJECT

RECORDS OF DENR IV CASE NO. 5445 ENTITLED
"L G.P.S.A. NO. 1604 AND 1605 PEDRO SOLIS (DECEASED),
NOW HIS HEIRS, REP. BY PANCHO A. SOLIS, CLAIMANTS-
PROTESTANTS —VERSUS- SANGGUNIANG BARANGAY OF
CAMBUNANG, BULALAGCAO, ORIENTAL MINDORO REP. BY
RENATO DE GUZMAN; CLAIMANT-PROTESTANT ~VERSUS-
FPA, NO. (IlI-12) 106 AQUILINO DE LEON, APPLICANT-
PROTESTANT AND PABLO BACULINAO, JR. (DECEASED)
NOW HIS HEIRS, REP. BY ELMO BACULINAC, APPLICANTS-
RESPONDENTS” INVOLVING LOT NOS. 478 AND 479, PLS-
395-D, SITUATED IN BGY. CAMBUNANG, BULALACAQ,
ORIENTAL MINDORO

This refers to the letter dated March 25, 2017 of Pancho A. Solis, representative
of the Claimants-Respondents, requesting for the implementation of the above-cited
case per Resolution dated August 9, 1993 issued by then Regional Executive Director
Antonio G. Principe. The dispositive portion of which is hereunder quoted:

"wOow THEREFORE, with the foregoing facts and discussions on the
matter the herein case is, as it is hereby, RESOLVED in the manner
provided, as follows: the LG.P.S.A. application Nos. 1604 and 1605 of
Pedro Solis (deceased) now represented by his Heirs over Lots No. 478 and
479 is, as it Is hereby, GIVEN FURTHER DUE COURSE taking into
consideration those areas already adjudicated to other persons in the
Orders previously issued. The Free Patent Application of Aquilino De Leon <l
under F.P.A. No. (III-12) 106 is, as it is hereby REJECTED and the same
DROPPED from the rolls; the application of Pablo Baculinao, Jr. &
(deceased) now represented by his Heirs is, as it is hereby also REJECTED

1515L &S ing, Roxas Ievard, En'nl, Mia 1000 page 1 of 2

TeleFax (632) 4050046. DENR VOIP (632) 7553300/30 local 2700/1 (Regional Director); 2709 (Legal Division)



and the same DROPPED from the rolis; the UEST; CLATM of the
Barangay (Cambunang) for a barangay site and ﬂ m/ﬂw yse is,
as it is hereby SET ASIDE as the game Is not proper in the premises,
however, with the instruction that the same be referred to the CENR ~
Office for another site identification and further action.”

Copies of the said Resolution were sent via registered mail. Per return cards,
copies thereof were received by Pancho A. Solis on August 24, 1993; Aquilino De Leon
on August 18, 1993; Renato de Guzman on Septémber 9, 1993; and Eimo Baculinao on
February 7, 1994.

Per Certification dated June 9, 1994 issued by then Regional Executive Director
Wilfrido S. Pollisco, no Motion for Reconsideration or Appeal was filed on the said
Resolution. Hence, the same had become final and executory.

As such, you are hereby directed to implement the same subject to the
provisions of DAO No. 2016-31.

Forwarded are the records of the said case consisting of one (1) folder with
Three Hundred Forty One (341) pages.

For information and record.

NATIVIDAD Y. BFRNARDINO, CESE

: &

occr

Heirs of Pedro Solis \ ¢/o Pancha A. Solfs
San Marlano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoso
Sangguniang Barangay of Cambunang, /0 Renato De Guzman
Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Orlental Mindoro
Aquitino De Leon Bagong Stkal, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro
Heirs of Pablo Baculinao, Jr. ¢/o Eimo Baculinao
Buiajacao, Orental Mindoro
CENRO - Roxas, Oriental Mindoro
PENRO Calapan, Orfental Mindoro

ﬁa Departmentol Emironment
Go L 4 Natural Resouces
el REGION 4B

UG

1515 L 8 & Bulding, Roxas Boulevard, Ermita, Manila 1000 :
TeleFax (632) 4050046, DENR VOIP (632) 7553300/30 local 2700/1 (Regionl Director); 2709 (Legal Division)




aNo. 10

Only for Voluntary ADR
of Amicable Settlement

‘a Republic of the Philippines

$ DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
S PROVINCIAL ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
Suqui, Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro

IN RE: = e
[ ] Agricultural Free Patent | pernr CENRO

[ ] Residential Free Patent B AN ' 133‘;(‘?8

[ ] Homestead Patent 0 B N

; 40 i fo A, T2
| Miscellaneous Sales Patent EE ol O ot B T D

( 13
| ] Sales Patent under RA 730 - :
[ ] Other TR AVAA, V- T

| DATE . ﬂ&h’»—

Lot 478 and 479, Pls 395-D, located at
Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental
Mindoro
(Identity of Land)

ADR Case No: 2022-1752040-0217

NYMIA G. MENDOZA and ROBERTQ
PAINGAS
(Protestant/Claimant)

PANCHO A. SOLIS
(Protestee/Appellee)

ORDER OF AMICABLE SETTLEMENT!

Submitted for consideration and approval is the Amicable Settlement forged by
‘and between NYMIA G. MENDOZA and ROBERTO PAINGAS, and PANCHO A.

SOLIS whereby the parties voluntarily and amicably settled their dispute in the above-
entitled case, to wit: ~

AMICABLE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?

“We, the claimants of the parcel of land, Lot 478 and 479, Pls 395-D,

' situated at Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro, pursuant to

DENR Adnunistrative Order No. 2016-30 dated 22 December 20162 hereby
declare that we have voluntarily agreed on the following:

"Terms and Conditions:

That, we agreed that these parcels of land known as Lot 478 and 479, Pls
395-D with a total area of 23.6405 hectares: 3 hectares will be assign for the
helper of Mr. Pancho Solis and the 2 hectares will be for the school site of
Cambunang National High School. The heirs also agreed that the school will be
named after their grandfather, Pedro Solis ~ “Pedro Solis Memorial National
High School”. Lastly, the area sold to Jun Sadara with an area of 2 hectares of

! Form for PENRO/ RD to be issued only by said Offices

? Quote the Amicable Settlement signed by parties

3 Section 21 (Amicable Settlement), DENR Administrative Order No. 2016-30 dated 22 December 2016, Guidelines
in the Conduct of Alternative Dispute Resolution {ADR) in Land Management and Disposition.



Pancho Solis will be the payments of all the expenses he incurred in the
processing of the case.

That, the remaining area of 16.6405 will be divided accordingly: Hrs. of
Magno Solis rep. by Pancho Solis - 10 hectares; Hrs of Consuelo Solis Gonzales
rep. by Nymia G. Mendoza - 3 hectares; and Hrs of Anita Solis-Paingas rep. by
Roberto Paingas - 3 hectares, and the remaining area of 0.6405 hectare will be
assigned to road lots of the subdivision survey.

That, we, Heirs of Pedro Solis are requesting DENR-CENRO Roxas to
include Lot No. 478 and 479, Pls 395-D to the public land surveys (PLS) because
the area are potentials for agricultural and residential surveys and applications.

We have read and fully understand the contents of this Agreement and
voluntarily affixed our signatures herein, which shall form part of the. The same
shall constitute as full and final settlement of any Protest or Complaint each

party may have against the other in relation to the subject lot. “

XXX

This Office finds that the Amicable Settlement was duly entered into voluntarily
by the parties with the terms and conditions thereof not contrary to law, morals, good
customs, public order or public policy. The Amicable Settlement is hereby APPROVED,

The approved settlement has the force and effect of a decision or judgment. The
parties are hereby ordered to faithfully comply with the terms and conditions of the
agreement. g .

'

SO ORDERED: - ;
Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro, Philippines, September 6, 2022.

=== i

In-Charge, PENRO Oriental Mindoro

-

Copy furnished:

NYMIA G. MENDOZA
Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro

ROBERTO PAINGAS
Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro

PANCHO A. SOLIS
Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro

DENR-CENRO, Roxas
San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro



Republika ng Pilipinas
Lalawigan ng Silangang Mindoro
Bayan nga Bulalacao
Barangay Poblacion

Sitio Tabuk
DENR-MIMAROPA REGION
Ika-13 ng Disyembre,2022 FROVINCIAL ENVIRORUELT AND NATURAL
TR S S s W <
KGG. MA. ANTONIA YULO-LOYZAGA RECEIVED BY: /rfﬂ@"?‘f’ I 2
Kalihim J
Kagawaran ng Kapaligiran at Likas na Yaman W

Visayas Avenue,Diliman,Quezon City
Atensyon:

KGG. ATTY. RICKY ARZADON
Usec. Office Operation
DENR-Central Office

Visayas Avenue,Diliman

Quezon City

KGG. LORMELYN F. CLAUDIO
Executive Regional Director
DENR-MiMaRoPa

3" Fl.,1515 Bldg.,Roxas Blvd.,
Ermita,Manila

KGG. ALAN L. VALLE
OIC-PENRO

DENR-Oriental Mindoro
Ilang-Ilang St.,Sitio Suqui
Calapan City,Oriental Mindoro

KGG.CAESAR E. QUEBEC
CENRO-Roxas,Oriental Mindoro
Purok Camia I1,Brgy.San Mariano
Roxas,Oriental Mindoro

Minamahal naming Kalihim Loyzaga,

Isang mapagpalang araw po sa inyo.

Muli po akong dumudulog sa inyong butihing tanggapan upang aking alamin ang kalagayan ng
aking liham na isinumite sa Office of the President Complain Center na may petsang ika-ika-9
ng Setyembre,2022 na kung saan nasundan po ito ng isang dayalogo na kasama po si
Atty.Ricky Arzadon noong ika- 18 ng Oktubre,2022 at muli po akong lumiham para sa isang
kahilingan ng dayalogo noong ika-15 ng Nobyembre,2022 ngunit magpasahanggang sa
kasalukuyan wala po akong natatanggap na anumang kasagutan.

Muli po nais kong ipabatid sa inyo na ang mga magsasaka na aktwal na nagsasaka ay hinaharas
po ni Pancho Solis ngayong araw ika-12 ng Disyembre,2022 pinang bunot ang kanilang mga
mubhon at sinira ang mga bakod. Dahil dito ako po ay humihingi ng agarang pag-imbistiga at
pagbaba ng isang kautusan na magkaroon ng “ status quo” sa nasabing lupang gobyerno at



magkaroon ng aktwal na pag-punta sa erya ang mga tauhan ng ahensyang may saklaw upang
maiwasan ang mas higit pang pang-aabusong ginagawa ng naghahariang-uri.

Nakapagpasukat na po ang mga aktwal na nagsasaka sa nasabing lupain kalakip po nito ay ang
sketch plan nila at sa kasamaang palad pinang bunot po ni Pancho Solis ang mga muhon kung
kaya’t kami ay nakiki-uusap na inyong bigyan na ng solusyon ang nasabing usapin sa lupa.

Hinihiling ko po na sa lalong madaling panahon magkaroon na ng dayalogo sa nasabing erya
upang alam ng bawat isa ang kanilang karapatan.

Umaasa po kami na ang aming kahilingan ay inyong mapagbigyan.
Maraming salamat po.
Mabuhay po kayo!!!!

Oriental Mindoro
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- LOT DESLREPTION S

BUREAU O} LANDS'

JLALAGAO PUELIC LAND SUBDIVISION e plovhint
‘uroey No. '_ Pls=395-D (.a,se No. .  hiunicipaiity of _ PULALACAC  Province of ..OR. MINDORO
Numgee | Mo, 1o Comner Live 1-2 Ling 2-3 LiNe 3-4 Livg 4-5 | AeEA SQUARR METER
277 wco'n{ii.vx_g_t}_onvv N84~39E 41"47.59 ﬁngsyim' 113.5] N76;i;é 197 92| S41E 76.7-2‘;!"?‘ 59185 “
478 |NR4-26d 4162.82 |E A ST 400.00| N73-LSE  80.97| S38e24W 246, 04] S43-35W 213.04 '1”
B N50-38M 62,67 | N31-02U  79.62| N66-16W  79.89| N 4-32W 194.97{1' 92039
479 |N2426W 4262.82 | 5.4-32E 194,97 | S56-7W 153.95| S 6-35E  55.34 S72-50M 8'7.78(1
S51-23W 98,47 | S12-29E  73.45| S62-33  27.34| N22-22W " 69.89{
CERTIFITD PEOTOCOPY o : s T
4”.’ 'zf_i“?%/;/_,,n N54-14%  77.14 | N17-06W 153.02{ NORTH 250,00 EAS T 400.00!
j ..,4 i BAST 10.00 | daaze8
WP50H  4568.56 | S 0-09E 250,00 | SOUTH 250,00 | S17-06E 153.02| N65-444 102.72| |
N52-21W 72,69 | N35-250 191.77| N40-414  82.79| N54-1iE 62.67
N42-23 193.29 | N51-37W 113.51| M 2-05E 139.66| EA S T 399.36|| 160536
480 |N24-3W 4167.27 |[WES T 400.00| NORTH  250,00| N 0-10E  77.98| N89-21E 106.74] -
S 6248 80.76 | SE1.048  95.71| S36-05E 250.50| NG4-39E 34,06 ,
B SOUTH  93.93 -841%%
w1.82 N27-50M 4568,56 |WE S T 399,36 | NORTH 250,00 | N89-46E 269.55| S21~24E  94.00
526-43E  96.48 | N89-21E  53.00| S O-10W  77.98| : 83978
483 NS1-24W  3248.92 | W EST 241.00|N28-238 89.11| N53-108  53.56| Ne4-38E 19.24 {
5  |seb-sme Be.tu|WoaTe 60.m|So-om 984l 2040
48 N2 4775.33 | S 3168 129.90| M7 90.00| Ni2-26w 161.34| N 6-278 5737 | ¢
N27-43E  80.62 | N51-55W 91.48| EA S T 156.90| § 0-05W 249.90| | 3123
485 |N65-00W 4386.56 | SOUTH 74,93 | N83-29W 161.23| NEB-5OW  B1.54 NB9-14W 72,05 [ i
- Seia oL |Mesw .87 X988 G613| M TLse| |
M9-43E 143.88 N83-17E 156,98 | NS8-14E  44.20 S56-A9B 18,81
T T I saoeass 138,62 | S 1-ME  35.15| S45-00E  42.43| Si4-W 54,06 81893
486 N 6-27 4579.00 |SOUTH 250,00 | WES T 61.00| N1-57W 130.33| NES=IN 19502
§21-55E 142,27 | W E S T 170.06| NORTH  250,00{ E A S T 400,00 76,73
487 |S46-20W 4203,77 | S 2-10W 327.64 | S48-28W  94.37| S 2-42W 51,29 S87-17MW 263.69 B
| N 8-01W 368.46 | N77-29E  410.00 ’ 142390
488 S51-28W 4958.00 |N77-29E 447.86| S B-0LE 368.46 | S86-41W 193.23 $73-19% 180,72
i S76-40W  80.48 | N18-3M 181.61| N 4-22E 177.79 B 163025~ B
489 |N30-37W 4996.56 | NB9-30W 17674 | N62-44H 119,55 | N35-26E 79_32- NS4-52E 160.06]
‘ I MAL4E  86.43 | NS41TE 53.70| NTL-34E 55, 70 S 1-55W - 346,01| 57580
490 |N29~46W 5321.00 |S26-520 77,26 | 523-330 17,39 | S52-02W 152'71; S41-s84 120,96
§59-09E  85.12 | S28-18W  58.62| S7-I  62.33) SS7-LW 35.90|
: 5‘17-22; 29.92 | N47-09 _ 2L.54 | 83-36W 74.62‘[ S 1-49E _ 52.61 (cont'd.)
i - NOTis L1, TIE LINES ARI‘}‘FHﬁM BLIM #1 - COR, 1 Suwm g @1‘3 11%.;?’

Aporr/ 17 , 1958

* For the Director of Landa:

. NICANOR Gf SORCE
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W wram-A LOT 478 - B
SCHOOL SITE
10,000 SQ. M. MAYH%%O% é’énﬁfm
+
cia | \OT KT8 - C LoT 478- D
4. ALLAN GARCIA DIONISIO SUDARRA
7,077 SQ. M. 44,336 SQ. M,

GEORGE BANTUGA
13,594 SQ. M,

BRGY' CAMBUNAN &
fuN ¢ BULALACAO

ckeTcH susdivisiod  PLan

oF LOT 478, PLS 395-P
BULALACAD PuB-1C LAND SusD,



JEREMIAS GAMOT
5,602 SQ. M.

+
351,898 SQ. M.

AIDA MAGNAYE

+
ALLAN GARCIA

TIMOTED ARAND
20,245 SQ. M.

10,123 3@ M.

BULALACANPUBLIC LAND SUBDIVISION
AREA= 144,388 SQ. M,

CEZAR DE LEON
10,123 SQ. M.

9,823 SQ. M.
NAPOLEDON MAGNAYER

9,223 SO. M
ROGER MAGNAXE

7,485 SQ. M,

1,805 SQ. M. RENATO MAGNAYE
-+

2,382 SQ. M
NAPOLEON MAGNAYE

BrGY! QAMBUNANG
MuN L BULALACAD

Tch SuBDVISION PLAN
SRETCE 27 274, FLs 295-D
BULALACAO PuBLic LAND SueD.
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Republika ng Pilipinas
Lalawigan ng Silangang Mindoro
Bayan ng Bulalacao
Barangay Poblacion
Sitio Tabuk

Ika-15 ng Nobyembre,2022
Kgg.Ma.Antonia Yulo-Loyzaga

Kalihim

Kagawaran ng Kapaligiran at Likas na Yaman
Visayas Avenue, Diliman,Quezon City

Atensyon:

Kgg.Lormelyn F.Claudio

Executive Regional Director DENR-MIMARGYA REDION
DENR-MiMaRoPa R
3" Fl., 1515 Bldg. T —
Roxas Blvd.,Ermita Manila S L ’“n%m o) )
Kgg.Mary June F.Maypa N 1772022 —
PENR Officer ST :
DENR Provincial Office

Iang-Ilang St.,Sitio I1,Suqui
Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro

Kgg. Alma E. Gibe
DMO IV/In-Charge,CENRO-Roxas
Oriental Mindoro

Minamahal naming Kalihim Ma.Antonia Yulo-Loyzaga,

Isang mapagpalang araw po sa inyo.

Muli po akong dumudulog sa inyong butihing tanggapan upang aking ipabatid sa inyong kaalaman
at hinihiling magkaroon ng isang dayalogo sa ika- 12 ng Disyembre,2022 ika-10:00
ng umaga sa covered court ng Brgy.Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro upang
masusing maimbistigahan ang pangungulekta ng malaking halaga na umabot ng milyon dahil
lamang sa ipinapakitang Resolution mula sa DENR Region 4-B na kung saan po nakasaad po dito
na ang nasabing public land batay sa talaan ito po ay may aplikasyon 1936 pa ngunit magpasa
hanggang sa kasalukuyan nanatili po itong hindi naproseso marahil sa maraming kasinungalingan
na naisumite sa nasabing aplikasyon.Ito po yong Lot 478 at 479 Pls-395-D na may aplikasyon ni
Pedro Solis na alleged ay aktwal na nakaposisyon sa nasabing lupang sakahan ngunit lahat ng
iyon ay kasinungalingan at noong 2020 ng biglang dumating ang nagpakilalang may-ari ng
nasabing lupang sakahan na si Pancho Solis dala ang isang resolution at sinasabing sya ang may
ari at naningil ng milyong halaga ng pera sa mga aktwal na nagsasaka sapilitang pina-alis din nya
ang mga magsasaka na aktwal na nagsasaka kung hindi makapagbayad sa kanya at kakasuhan pa
umano sa korte o di kaya ay ipapa-pulis na kung saan sa takot ng mga magsasaka napilitang
magbayad yong karamihan at yong iba naman ay napilitang umalis sa lupang sakahan na kanilang
sinasaka.

Dabhil sa nangyari ito ay nagdulot ng takot,pagkabalisa sa dating tahimik na pamumuhay ng mga
magsasaka kung kaya’t sa tulong ng invong lingkod nakakuha kami ng mga dokumentong
nagsasaad na ang nasabing lupang sakahan po ay isang public land na may nakabinbing
aplikasyon kung kaya’t kami ay humihiling ng isang makabuluhang dayalogo na gaganapin sa
Brgy.Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro upang ipaliwanag ang mga sumusunod na mga
katanungan;



1. Batay sa naisumiting aplikasyon ni Pedro Solis taong 1936 sya ay aktwal na nakaposisyon
sa nasabing lupang sakahan, nagkaroon ng disisyon na pinal ngunit pina-ulit hanggang sa
ito ay naglapsed; Kung naglapsed na ang itinakdang panahon para sa nasabing aplikasyon
bakit nanatiling nagpakilala si Pancho Solis na sya ang may-ari ng nasabing lupang sakahan?

2.5a nakasaad sa nasabing resolution hindi ko nakita na nakasaad na ang binigyan
ng karapatan ng ahensyang may saklaw ay si Pancho Solis, na mangulekta ng milyong
halaga ng salapi mula sa mga magsasaka, sapilitang nagpa-alis ng mga aktwal na
nagsasaka sa nasabing lupang sakahan at nanankot sa mga aktwal na nakaposisyon,
sinamantala nya ang kakulangan ng kaalaman ng mga magsasaka para sila ay dayain,lukuhin;
Tanong bibigyan pa rin ba ng ahensya ng due course ang aplikasyon ni Pedro Solis?
( Kalakip po ang kasunduan ng bayaran ng pera na kinulekta ni Pancho Solis)

3.Batay na rin sa ginamit na batayan ng aplikasyon Act No.3038 na may provision
of Act No.2874 na may aktwal na pagkultiba/pamomosisyon,sa pagkakataong ito
simula ng masumiti ang nasabing aplikasyon walang pamomosisyon o pagkultiba
mula sa aplikante kundi ang pananamantala sa mga aktawal na nakaposisyon
aktwal na nagsasaka,Ano ang maging kaparusahang igawad ng ahensyang may
saklaw sa pananamantala ng aplikante o nagpakilalang may-ari ng lupaing hindi
naman pala totoo?

4. Sa kasalukuyang sitwasyon, sino ang mas higit na bibigyan ng pagkakataong
magkaroon ng titulo sa public land yong aktwal na nagsasaka o yong may
aplikasyon na nanamantala?

Nakakabahala po ang laki ng nakulektang pera ng dahil sa resolusyong nagmula sa inyong ahensya
na nagagamit sa pananamantala kung kaya’t ang agarang aksyon pag-imbistiga at pagpataw ng
kaparusahan ang dapat na mangingibabaw.

Kalakip po ng aking liham ay ang ilang dokumento na maaaring makatulong upang mapag-
aralan ang nasabing suliranin sa lupa.

Umaasa po kami na ang aming kahilingan na magkaroon ng isang makabuluhang dayalogo na ang
dadalo ay mula sa inyong butihing tanggapan,taggapan ng legal at operasyon at hinihiling po
namin na makasama sa nasabing dayalogo si Atty. Ricky Arzadon upang makakuha
kami ng tamang kasagutan at matinong proseso sa aming inihaing sitwasyon sana po kami ay
mabigyang pansin at agarang aksyon.

Maraming salamat po.
Mabuhay po kayo!!!!

Lubos na agalang,

Mari S. Bodegas

Provincial Cooxdjnator Magsasaka Party List
Sitio Tabuk,Poblacion,Bulalacao

Oriental Mindoro

Cp#09454456722

Copy furnished:

Atty. Ricky Arzadon
DENR-Central Office

Magsasaka Party List
#34 Matiyaga St.Pinyahan
Quezon City

Hon.Mayor Engr.Ernilo C.Villas
Local Executive
Municipality of Bulalacao
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" KNOW ALL MEN-H@THESE PRESENTS

That I, GEORGE A. BANTUGAN,married, of legal age, Filipino citizen

and a residents of Brgy.Poblacion,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines do hereby
name, constitute and appoint, MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS, likewise of
legal age married and a resident of Sitio Tabuk,Poblacion,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,
Philippines, as our true and lawful attorney -in-fact for us and in our name,place, and
stead, to do and perform the

following acts and things to wit;

1. To act for and in my behalf before the Office of Municipal and Provincial
Assessors, Office of Department of Agrarian Reform( DAR Provincial Office
Oriental Mindoro) Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)
Register of Deeds Oriental Mindoro, Landbank of the Philippines,Office of the
President and all other offices,agencies and persons concern for my security of
tenure as the actual possessioner,cultivator on Lot 478 Pls 395 D for almost 12
years located at Brgy. Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines;

2. To file,execute and sign all papers/documents which maybe necessary for
the consumption of the authorities given above.

HEREBY GIVING AND GRANTING, unto my said attorney-in-fact,full power
and authority to do and perform all of every act and things whatsoever requisite
necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and purposes
as we might or could do if personally present and hereby ratifying and confirming all
that my said attorney-in-fact shall lawfully do or cause to be done under by the virtue
of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our handsthis ~ of
CUBAUG 22 opo2oin  Bulalacao Qriental Mindorc

N (\j\z

GEORGE A. BANTUGAN MARIA
Grantor Attorneycip-Fact
PRVELL  ucence \P1-20 -00D %57 UMID CRN:0111-0727696-9

SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF:

L. \}@wv\lél

JESGE  pEA AL

v




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF ORIENTAL MINDORO )S.S.
MUNICIPALITY OF )

BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary Public for and the Province of Oriental
Mindoro,known to me and known to be as the same person who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledgement to me the same are their voluntarily
act and deeds. ‘

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL, this day of (1 § AUG 2427 ,2022
at _Bulalacao Oriental Mindore  ,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines.

N
atty. ARNEL-T, CALDERON

Notary Public__
Doc.No.__ 7 Untit UEL £/
Page No. Roll of Attorney's No, 52510
Book No. 2 ‘CLE Compliance No. VU~ 0018870 04-14-25
Series of___7097 IBPORNe. 17.::8 0 06 .2

PTR No. 2251°0.4, (104 22
Bulaloran Orientaf (4790 o



SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That WE, JEREMIAS T. GAMO, DIONISIO S. SUDARA,MARIVIC LIZA
FABILA,MAYLEN Q.ORDANZA,DOROTEA C.GARCIA,TIMOTEO P.
ARANO, RENATO D.C. MAGNAYE, all married, all of legal age, Filipino citizens
and a residents of Brgy.Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines do hereby
name, constitute and appoint, MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS, likewise of
legal age married and a resident of Sitio Tabuk,Poblacion,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,
Philippines, as our true and lawful attorney -in-fact for us and in our name,place, and
stead, to do and perform the

following acts and things to wit;

1. Toact for and in our behalf before the Office of Municipal and Provincial
Assessors, Office of Department of Agrarian Reform( DAR Provincial Office
Oriental Mindoro) Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)
Register of Deeds Oriental Mindoro, Landbank of the Philippines,Office of the
President and all other offices,agencies and persons concern for our security of
tenure as the actual possessioners on Lot 147,148,149,478 and 479 Pls 395D
located at Brgy. Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines;

2. To file,execute and sign all papers/documents which maybe necessary for
the consumption of the authorities given above.

HEREBY GIVING AND GRANTING, unto our said attorney-in-fact,full power
and authority to do and perform all of every act and things whatsoever requisite
necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and purposes
as we might or could do if personally present and hereby ratifying and confirming all
that our said attorney-in-fact shall lawfully do or cause to be done under by the virtue
of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, we have hereunto set our handsthis ___ of
08 AU 777 20221in Bulalacao Oriental Mindoro

“Jk«' ] /\gé

JEREMIAS T.GAMO DIONISIO SUDARA
Grantor : Grantor
08 . pe-0m DRIVERYS  LICENSE : DOT -&3-009223

MARIVIC LIZA FABILA MAYLEN Q. ORD
Grantor Grantor
PILBEQUY ™ - 205599723 .

| VN~ 5204005386 231 EMBUZO00C-L
Q TV azome

DOROTEA C.GARCIA TIMOTEO P. ARANO
Grantor Grantor
o ng- 0C-00%1 W37 - 190 200



. Maginoind
RENATO D.C! NAYE

Grantor
PRHLREUR 0. (A-20037242-9 UMID CRN:o

1-0727696-9

SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF:

WAl
ks IJ $ G\ 2.
|/
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF ORIENTAL MINDORO )S.S.
MUNICIPALITY OF )

x-._._.- - —— - -

BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary Public for and the Province of Oriental
Mindoro,known to me and known to be as the same person who executed the

foregoing instrument and acknowledgement to me the same are their voluntarily
act and deeds.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL, this day of 0 § AUG W1 2022
at _Bulalacao Oriental Mindoro  Oriental Mindoro,Philippines.

_'—\.;;}_/
Atty. ARNEL T, CALDERON
e el

Roll of Attorne ‘:'1
Doc.No._ {3 MCLE Compliance !
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Republika ng Pilipinas
Lalawigan ng Silangang Mindoro) S.s.
Bayan ng Bulalacao

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

Ako po si G.Jeremias Gamo, 70, taong gulang, naninirahan sa Brgy.Cambunang,
Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines, may asawa at mga anak.

Matapos makapanumpa at kusang loob na nagsasalaysay ng mga sumusunod;

Na nais ko po magbigay ng salaysay na sa katunayan na itong si Pedro Solis
ay hindi ko nakita na nagsasaka sa lupang sakahan na kanilang sinasabi na
kanilang pag-aari.

Na simula pa taong 1978, ng ako ay magsaka ( binata pa ako) ito ay sariling linis
ko para mapagyaman ko ang nasabing lupang sakahan hanggang sa ako ay
nakapag-asawa, nagka-anak at ngayon may mga apo na na kung saan biglang
nagpatawag ng pagpupulong ang aming Brgy. Kapitan Alma Nool at sinasabi na
ang may-ari ng nasabing lupang sakahan ay si Pancho Solis at kami ay sapilitang
pinapabayad ng malaking halaga at kung hindi kami magbibigay kami ay kanyang
paalisin sa nasabing lupang sakahan at ipapa-pulis at sasampahan ng kaso sa korte;

Dahil sa takot ako po ay nagbayad ng Php 70,000.00 at noong nag-ani ako
nagbayad ako ng Php 12,000.00 upang hindi mawala ang lupang aking sinasaka
sa matagal na panahon na syang ikinabubuhay ng aking pamilya.

Naging kalbaryo na sa akin ang nasabing pangyayari, na sa kabila ng aking
pagsisikap na mamuhay ng malinis ng marangal may mga tao palang nabubuhay sa
panloloko at ito ay aking dinamdam ngunit kailangan kong patuloy na lumaban sa
hamon ng buhay kung kaya’t kami ng aking mga kasamahang magsasaka na
nabiktima ng mapagsamantalang mga tao nagsumikap na matuklasan ang
katotohanan at itong buwan ng Agosto ng aming nabatid na hindi pala pag-aari ni
Pedro Solis ang nasabing lupang sakahan sapagkat ito ay isang public land kung
kaya’t minarapat namin ng aking mga kasamahan na tumanggi na sa anumang
paniningil ni Pancho Solis sa amin dahil niloko nya lamang kami sinamantala nya
ang aming kahinaan sa mga dokumento at hindi man lamang ito ipinaliwanag sa
amin maging ng aming barangay kapitan na kasama noon ng ipinakilala si Pancho
Solis na may-ari ng nasabing lupang sakahan;

Akin ding nabatid na kaming mga aktwal na nakaposisyon sa mahabang panahon
ay mas higit ang aming karapatan kaysa mga umaangkin sa nasabing lupain kung
kaya’t ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito upang ipakita ko, kami ng mga taga Brgy.
Cambunang na biktima ng mga mapagsamantalang mga tao at kami ay matagal
ng nagsasaka at tahimik na namumuhay sa lupang aming pina-unlad at walang
Pedro Solis na aktwal na nagsasaka dito o maging si Pancho Solis;

Na ang nakuhang mga dokumento na nagsasabing ito ay public land kaakibat ang
tamang sukat at isang resolution doon namin nabatid na kaming lahat na

1)



nakuhanan ng malaking halaga ni Pancho Solis ay biktima ng kanyang sinasabing
sya ang may-ari ng nasabing lupang sakahan;

Sa kasalukuyan,kami ng aking mga kasamang mga magsasaka ay umaasa na
mabigyan ng kaukulang aksyon ang aming sinapit sa nasabing isyu at ang lupang
sakahan na aming aktwal na sinasaka ay mapasa amin na.

Aking ginawa itong salay na ito upang mailahad ang kasinungalingan ni Pedro Solis
at maging ng kanyang apo na si Pancho Solis at upang maitama ang maling
impormasyon na kanilang ipinagpipilitang maling impormasyon sa mga tao sa
nasabing barangay na sila ang may-ari ng nasabing lupain.

SA KATUNAYAN NG LAHAT NG ITO, AKO ay lumalagda sa ibaba nito
ngayong ika- ng 14 NV 72077 ,2022 dito sa

8ulafacao Oriental Mindoro

JG70
JEREMIAS T. GAMO
nagsasalaysay

SINUMPAAN AT NILAGDAAN SA HARAP KO ngayong ika-
ng 14 N0V lilagao, dito sa Bulalacao Oriental Mindoro

Atty. ARNELF CALDERON

Notary Public
Until
Doc. No. 1L Roll of Attorney's Ne, 'VR"
Page Noﬂ% MCLE Compliance No, \ 1" Wish 0 04-14-2:
Book No. IBP OR No. 172318; 01-08-22
Series of 2022 FTR No. L~::\<E~nl Ci-04-22
Bulzlacna Oriental Mindero
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Republika ng Pilipinas

Lalawigan ng Silangang Mindoro) S.S.
Bayan ng Bulalacao

SINUMPAANG SALAYSAY

Ako po si G.Renato De Chavez Magnaye,50 taong gulang, naninirahan sa Brgy.
Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines, may asawa at mga anak.

Matapos makapanumpa at kusang loob na nagsasalaysay ng mga sumusunod;

Na nais ko po magbigay ng salaysay na sa katunayan na itong si Pedro Solis
ay hindi ko nakita na nagsasaka sa lupang sakahan na kanilang sinasabi na
kanilang pag-aari.

Ako po ay isinilang na sa lugar na ito, ang aking mga magulang ang syang

kinamulatan ko ng nagsasaka sa nasabing lupang sakahan kung kaya’t ako po ay
Nabigla sa biglang pagdating ni Pancho Solis at inaangkin ang aming lupang sinasaka
na sa kanila daw po ito sabay na pinatutuhanan ng aming Brgy.Kapitan dahil sa takot at
panggigipit napilitang magbigay ng Php 100,000.00 ang aking kapatid na si Napoleon
Magnaye kay Pancho Solis.

Kung kaya't kami ng aking mga kasamahang mga magsasaka na aktwal na

nagsasaka ay naghanap ng maaaring makatulong sa aming suliranin at natuklasan
namin na ang nasabing lupang sakahan na aming sinasaka ay isang public land at
Pinaunawa din sa amin ang ibig sabihin na nakasaad sa resolution na pinapanakot sa
amin ni Pancho Solis.

Akin ding nabatid na kaming mga aktwal na nakaposisyon sa mahabang panahon ay
mas higit ang aming karapatan kaysa mga umaangkin sa nasabing lupain kung
kaya’t ginawa ko ang salaysay na ito upang ipakita ko, kami ng mga taga Brgy.
Cambunang ay biktima ng mga mapagsamantalang mga tao at kami ay matagal ng
nagsasaka at tahimik na namumuhay sa lupang aming pina-unlad at walang

Pedro Solis na aktwal na nagsasaka dito o maging si Pancho Solis;

Ang nakakuhang mga dokumento na nagsasabing ito ay public land kaakibat ang tamang
sukat at isang resolution doon namin nabatid na kaming lahat na nakuhanan ng malaking
halaga ni Pancho Solis ay biktima ng kanyang sinasabing sya ang may-ari ng nasabing lupang
sakahan;

Sa kasalukuyan,kami ng aking mga kasamang mga magsasaka ay umaasa na mabigyan ng
kaukulang aksyon ang aming sinapit sa nasabing isyu at ang lupang sakahan na aming aktwal
na sinasaka ay mapasa amin na.

AKking ginawa itong salay na ito upang mailahad ang kasinungalingan ni Pedro Solis at maging
ng kanyang apo na si Pancho Solis at upang maitama ang maling impormasyon na kanilang
ipinagpipilitang maling impormasyon sa mga tao sa nasabing barangay na sila ang may-ari ng
nasabing lupain.



SA KATUNAYAN NG LAHAT NG ITO, AKO ay lumalagda sa ibaba nito
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RENATO DE CHAVEZ MAGNAYE

nagsasalaysay
SINUMPAAN AT NILAGD KO ngayong ika-
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Republika ng Pilipinas
Lalawigan ng Silangang Mindoro
Bayan nga Bulalacao
Barangay Poblacion

Sitio Tabuk
DENR-MIMAROPA REGION
Tka-13 ng Disyembre,2022 TROVINCIAL ENVINONMENT AND NATURAL
T T ;L
KGG. MA. ANTONIA YULO-LOYZAGA e o g i)
Kalihim ' i =
Kagawaran ng Kapaligiran at Likas na Yaman W

Visayas Avenue,Diliman,Quezon City
Atensyon:

KGG. ATTY. RICKY ARZADON
Usec. Office Operation
DENR-Central Office

Visayas Avenue,Diliman

Quezon City

KGG. LORMELYN F. CLAUDIO
Executive Regional Director
DENR-MiMaRoPa

3" Fl.,1515 Bldg.,Roxas Blvd.,
Ermita,Manila

KGG. ALAN L. VALLE
OIC-PENRO

DENR-Oriental Mindoro
Ilang-Ilang St.,Sitio Suqui
Calapan City,Oriental Mindoro

KGG.CAESAR E. QUEBEC
CENRO-Roxas,Oriental Mindoro
Purok Camia I1,Brgy.San Mariano
Roxas,Oriental Mindoro

Minamahal naming Kalihim Loyzaga,

Isang mapagpalang araw po sa inyo.

Muli po akong dumudulog sa inyong butihing tanggapan upang aking alamin ang kalagayan ng
aking liham na isinumite sa Office of the President Complain Center na may petsang ika-ika-9
ng Setyembre,2022 na kung saan nasundan po ito ng isang dayalogo na kasama po si
Atty.Ricky Arzadon noong ika- 18 ng Oktubre,2022 at muli po akong lumiham para sa isang
kahilingan ng dayalogo noong ika-15 ng Nobyembre,2022 ngunit magpasahanggang sa
kasalukuyan wala po akong natatanggap na anumang kasagutan.

Muli po nais kong ipabatid sa inyo na ang mga magsasaka na aktwal na nagsasaka ay hinaharas
po ni Pancho Solis ngayong araw ika-12 ng Disyembre,2022 pinang bunot ang kanilang mga
muhon at sinira ang mga bakod. Dahil dito ako po ay humihingi ng agarang pag-imbistiga at
pagbaba ng isang kautusan na magkaroon ng “ status quo” sa nasabing lupang gobyerno at



magkaroon ng aktwal na pag-punta sa erya ang mga tauhan ng ahensyang may saklaw upang
maiwasan ang mas higit pang pang-aabusong ginagawa ng naghahariang-uri.

Nakapagpasukat na po ang mga aktwal na nagsasaka sa nasabing lupain kalakip po nito ay ang
sketch plan nila at sa kasamaang palad pinang bunot po ni Pancho Solis ang mga muhon kung
kaya’t kami ay nakiki-uusap na inyong bigyan na ng solusyon ang nasabing usapin sa lupa.

Hinihiling ko po na sa lalong madaling panahon magkaroon na ng dayalogo sa nasabing erya
upang alam ng bawat isa ang kanilang karapatan.

Umaasa po kami na ang aming kahilingan ay inyong mapagbigyan.
Maraming salamat po.
Mabuhay po kayo!!!!

(1aN

Mariann “-'\t'?‘ son Bodegas
Magsasaka Party|{I§st Provincial Coordinator
Sitio Tabuk, Pobla¢ion,Bulalacao

Oriental Mindoro



& Republic of the Philippines

epartment of Environment and Natural R urces 1 T
MIMAROPA Region Amnex C
e e Community Environment and Natural Resources Office
- Camia St., San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro

Contact No.: 0917 876 9985/ 0917 169 0232
VOIP: (043) 289-7118
Email: cenroroxas_orientalmin@yahoo.com

January 24, 2023

MEMORANDUM T erimmmRera G

FOR : The OIC-PENR Officer R S L A 5=
Suqui, Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro s S

FROM : The CENR Officer LRI

San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro

SUBJECT : REQUEST OF MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS
FOR A DIALOGUE/MEETING ON DECEMBER 12,
2022 AT BARANGAY CAMBUNANG, BULALACAO,
ORIENTAL MINDORO.

Respectfully submitted is the report of Land Management Officer 11 Rodel M.
Montealegre of this Office regarding the request of Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas for a
dialogue/meeting held on December 12, 2022 at Brgy. Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental
Mindoro

For information.

EN CAESAR E. QUEBEC
CENR Officer

RPS/PDU/rmm




e % Republic of the Philippines :
éa epartment of Environment and Natyral hesources

MIMAROPA Region A "
e Community Environment and Natural Resources Office hhex  C
o Camia St., San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro
Contact No.: 0917 876 9985 / 0917 169 0232
* VOIP: (043) 289-7118

Email: cenroroxas_orientalmin@yahoo.com

January 23, 2023

FOR : The OIC-PENR Officer
Suqui, Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro
THRU ; The CENR Officer
San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro
FROM : The Land Management Officer II
SUBJECT : REQUEST OF MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS

FOR A DIALOGUE/MEETING ON DECEMBER 12,
2022 AT BARANGAY CAMBUNANG, BULALACAOQO,
ORIENTAL MINDORO.

This pertains to the request of Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas addressed to DENR
Secretary Ma. Antonia Yulo-Loyzaga which was received by your Office on November 17,
2022 and forwarded to this Office on November 25, 2022, requesting for a dialogue/meeting
to be held at Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro.

On December 12, 2022, the undersigned together with Cartographer 1 Simplicio C.
Calinog went to the venue where the scheduled dialogue/meeting will be held. We conducted
coordination with Barangay Captain Alma M. Nool and waited until noon of that same date
but unfortunately, no one among the farmers/occupants of the lots involved arrived and even
Ms. Bodegas.

For information and record.

RODE . MONTEALEGRE

RPSPDU rmm
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Republic ui-iie Philippines
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA Region

NOV 03 2822 |

BB. MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS
Magsasaka Party List — Provincial Coordinator
Sitio Tabuk, Poblacion

Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro
<arlfenesamson1104@gmail.com>

Binibining Bodegas,
Isang makakalikasang araw!

lto po ay tugon sa inyong sulat na may petsang Setyembre 12, 2022 at email na may
petsang September 18, 2022 patungkol sa inyong request para sa kopya ng Resolution na
may petsang August 9, 1993 kaugnay ng DENR IV Case No. 5445" sangkot ang Lot Nos.
478 at 479. Pls-395-D na matatagpuan sa Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental
Mindoro.

Nais po naming ipabatid sainyo na ang buong records ng kaso ay naibaba na sa PENRO
Oriental Mindoro/CENRO Roxas, Oriental Mindoro para sa implementasyon ng nasabing
Resolution sa pamamagitan ng Memorandum na may petsang December 13, 2017 at ito ay
naipadala noong February 6, 2018 sa tulong ng registered mail.

Maaari po kayong magtungo sa tanggapan ng PENROQO Oriental Mindoro (Sitio 1I, llang-ilang
St., Barangay Suqui, Calapan City) at/o ng CENRO Roxas, Oriental Mindoro (Purok Camia I,
Barangay San Mariano, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro) upang ilapit ang inyong request. Mangyari
po lamang na magdala ng kinakailangang Special Power of Attorney (SPA) at ng mga
dokumentong may kinalaman sa kaso.

Nais din po naming ipaalala na ang paghingi ng certified true copy ng mga opisyal na
dokumento mula sa aming tanggapan ay may kaukulang bayad sang-ayon sa DENR
Administrative Order (DAO) No. 2000-16 na nagsasaad ng Rates of Fees for Certain
Administrative Services Rendered.

Umaasa ang aming tanggapan na naliwanagan kayo patungkol sa inyong request.

Lubos na gumagalang,

LORMELYN E. CLAUDIO, CESO IV
Regional Executive Director,].\

Binigvang sipi: L Byl
o s ...é;- MIMAROPA Reyon
CENRO Roxas, Oriental Mindoro Noc ID 94457 '

' DENR IV Case No. 5445 entitled */.G P.S.A No. 1604 and 1605 Pedro Sofis (Deceased), now his Heirs, reprasented by Pancha A. Solis,
Claimants-Protestants, vs. Sangguriang Barangay of Cambunang, Bulalacao, Qriental Mindoro, represented by Renato De Guzman,
Claimant-Protestant. vs. F.F.A. No. (I-12) 106 Aquilino De Leon, Applicant-Respondent, and Pablo Baculinao, Jr {Doceased) now his
Hairs. represented by Elmo Baculinao, Applicants-Respondents”

ARD-MSAD DENIR By-the-Bay Building, 1515 Roxas Soutevard, 100C Ermita, Manila
Telephone No  (02) 84050048
Website: hitps dmanaiopa gent gov ph
Emall mimaroparegion@dent gov ph, danrdblagal@gmail com



SPECIAL. POWER OF ATTORNEY
NOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That WE, JEREMIAS T. GAMO, DIONISIO S. SUDARA,MARIVIC LIZA
FABILA,MAYLEN Q.ORDANZA,DOROTEA C.GARCIA, TIMOTEO P.
ARANO, RENATO D.C. MAGNAYE, all married, all of legal age, Filipino citizens
and a residents of Brgy.Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines do hereby
name, constitute and appoint, MARIANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS, likewise of
legal age married and a resident of Sitio Tabuk,Poblacion,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,
Philippines, as our true and lawful attorney -in-fact for us and in our name,place, and
stead, to do and perform the

following acts and things to wit;

1. To act for and in our behalf before the Office of Municipal and Provincial
Assessors, Office of Department of Agrarian Reform( DAR Provincial Office
Oriental Mindoro) Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)
Register of Deeds Oriental Mindoro, Landbank of the Philippines,Office of the
President and all other offices,agencies and persons concern for our security of
tenure as the actual possessioners on Lot 147,148,149,478 and 479 Pls 395D
located at Brgy. Cambunang,Bulalacao,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines;

2. To file,execute and sign all papers/documents which maybe necessary for
the consumption of the authorities given above.

HEREBY GIVING AND GRANTING, unto our said attorney-in-fact, full power
and authority to do and perform all of every act and things whatsoever requisite
necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and purposes
as we might or could do if personally present and hereby ratifying and confirming all
that our said attorney-in-fact shall lawfully do or cause to be done under by the virtue
of these presents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this of
08AU N2 2022 in Bulalacao Oriental Mindoro .

TG M
JEREMIAS T.GAMO : DIONISIO S.SUDARA

Grantor ‘ Grantor
0L - oS -0 DRAVERS  LICBNSE : DOT -44-009223
'Tﬂajlm @
LIZA FABILA : MAYLEN Q. ORD
Grantor _ Grantor

[ . P S .
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F Maghark
RENATO D.C.MAGNAYE MARIANN NE S. BODEGAS
Grantor Attorney-is-Fact

MHEaUm  ho. 1- 1000799409 UMID CRN:0111-0727696-9

SIGNED IN THE/PRESENCE OF:

’ =
1. 9 - O Twgon 2z,

| /

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )

PROVINCE OF ORIENTAL MINDORO )S.S.
MUNICIPALITY OF )

BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary Public for and the Province of Oriental
Mindoro,known to me and known to be as the same person who executed the

foregoing instrument and acknowledgement to me the same are their voluntarily
act and deeds.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL, this day of [ 8 AUG 2027 ,2022
at __Bulalacao Oriental Mindoro ,Oriental Mindoro,Philippines.

Atty, m@%mmn

Notary Public
Until 3 1 DEC 2022

\
_ Roll of Attorney's No. |
DOC.NO. g!ﬁ ML E Pamaliancs fix \Xls ﬁ?n(s,f?lo R 1



sq 7 - —,
Republic of the Philippines e
Department of Environment and Natural Resources A hne X E

e MIMAROPA REGION

Provincial Enviromment and Natural Resources Office
A RS B A A SN T i

January 26, 2023

GINANG MARJANNE ARLENE S. BODEGAS
AIF/MPC-Provincial Coordinator

Sitio Tabuk, Poblacion, Bulalacao

Oriental Mindoro

Gng. Bodegas:

Ito po ay may kinalaman sa inyong sulat na may petsang ika-25 ng Enero 2023 na humuhiling
ng kopya ng Resolution na nabanggit sa Memorandum mula sa MIMAROPA Region na may
petsang December 13, 2017 at naipadala noong February 6, 2018.

Para po sa inyong kaalaman, ang nabanggit po na dokumento ay ang Resoltion na may petsa
noong ika-9 ng Agosto 1993 kaugnay ng DENR IV Case No. 5445 na patungkol sa .G.P.S. A
No. 1604 and 1605, PEDRO SOLIS (deceased), now his Heirs, Rep. by Pancho A. Solis cfaimant-
protestan) Versus F.P.A. No. (111-12) 106, Aquilino De L.eon and Pablo Baculinao, Jr. (Deceased)
now his Heirs, Rep. by Elmo Baculinao qppticans-Respondenss), sangkot ang Lot Nos. 478 at 479,
Pls 395-D na matatagpuan sa Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro.

Sa punto pong ito, nais po naming ipaalam sa inyo na maaari po kayong kumuha ng nasabing
kopya sa CENR Office, Roxas, Oriental Mindoro at tanging ang korte lamang po ang maaari
naming pagkalooban upang gamitin sa mababanggit na layunin.

Nawa po ay maunawaan ninyo. Maraming salamat po.

Lubos na gumagalang,

Tracking No. 2301000479

ce: CENRG Roxas
Ovientel Mindore
F _ RE 610 699 994 77
- UL T T T TR
Post Office * P oot

Letter/Package No

Preserve this receipt for teferenee in case of inquiry

RIS
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Tang-tlang St., Sitio 1, Suqui, Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro
DENR Contaet Nos. (0433 2883017, Tel, Fax No. 288-3006



&epublic of the Philippines

Departiment of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA REGION

Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Office

January 13, 2023

MEMORANDUM
TO g The CENR Officer
CENRO Roxas
ATTENTION: The In-Charge, Regulation and Permitting Section
FROM : The OIC, PENR Officer

PENRO, Oriental Mindoro

SUBJECT LETTER DATED NOVEMBER 03, 2022 FROM REGIONAL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ADDRESSED TO MARIANNE
ARLENE S. BODEGAS, MAGSASAKA PARTY LIST-
PROVINCIAL COORDINATOR

Furnished is a copy of letter dated November 03, 2022 from the Regional Executive
Director addressed to Ms. Marianne Arlene S. Bodegas, Magsasaka Party List — Provincial
Coordiantor, Sitio Tabuk, Poblacion, Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro, informing that the records
of the DENR Case No. 5445, covering Lot Nos. 478 and 479, Pls 395-D located at Cambunang,
Bulalacao, were already forwarded to CENRO Roxas for the implementation of the Resolution
dated August 9, 1993.

Relative thereto, you are hereby instructed to coordinate with Ms. Bodegas regarding
her request and concerns about the said case. -

For appropriate action.

AL ALLE

Tracking Nos: 23010000121

TSD/RPS
lang-ilang St., Sitio I, Suqui. Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro
DENR Contact Nos. (043) 288-3017, Tel. Fax No. 288-3006
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f(cpubh’c of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources
MIMAROPA REGION

Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Office

January 9, 2023

MEMORANDUM
TO : The CENR Officer
CENRO Roxas
ATTENTION: The In-Charge, Regulation and Permitting Section
FROM . The OIC, PENR Officer ‘
PENRO, Oriental Mindoro
SUBJECT LETTER DATED DECEMBER 13, 2022 FROM MARIANNE

ARLENE SAMSON BODEGAS, MAGSASAKA PARTYLIST
PROVINCIAL COORDINATOR, SITIO TABUK, POBLACION,
BULALACAOQ, ORIENTAL MINDORO

Referred is the letter dated December 13, 2022 from Marianne Arlene Samson Bodegas,
Magsasaka Partylist Provincial Coordinator, Sitio Tabuk, Poblacion, Bulalacao, Oriental
Mindoro, requesting for a status quo and actual investigation on the public land covering Lot
478 and 479, Pls 395-D due to alleged harassment by Mr. Pancho Solis to farmers occupying
the said public lands.

It may be recalled that this Office instructed you to send a representative to attend in
the scheduled dialogue meeting on December 12, 2022 at Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao
concerning the same lots. Please provide status update / report on the said attendance
considering that the concerns of Ms. Bodegas on the said harassment was done on same date.

On the other hand, in the Completed Staff Work (CSW) dated December 13, 2022
prepared by SI Marie Anne F. Galit duly attested by LMO II Peterson F. Fabellon, she clarified
the series of questions concerned by Ms. Bodegas, and further recommended that Ms. Bodegas
shall submit substantial evidence in claiming such lands, submit necessary documents as stated
in DAO No. 2016-31", and the Order of Amicable Settlement between the Heirs of Pedro Solis
be executed in order to exercise social justice.

In this regard, please coordinate directly with Ms. Bodegas and advise her to submit
substantial evidence to support their claims over the lands and submit necessary documents as
stipulated in DAO No. 2016-31.

For immediate compliance.

AL ALLE

! Procedures in the Investigation and Resolution of Lands Claims and Conflicts Cases

TSD/RPS
Ilang-ilang St., Sitio H, Suqui, Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro
DENR Contact Nos. {043) 288-3017, Tel. Fax No. 288-3006



Republic of the Philippines

Department of Environment and Natural Resources
ey MIMAROPA REGION

e Provincial Environment and Natural Resources Office

December 7, 2022

MEMORANDUM
TO 5 The CENR Officer
CENRO Roxas
ATTENTION: The In-Charge, Regulation and Permitting Section
FROM : The OIC, PENR Officer
Oriental Mindoro
SUBJECT LETTER DATED NOVEMBER 15, 2022 FROM MARIANNE

ARLENE S. BODEGAS, PROVINCIAL COORDINATOR
MAGSASAKA PARTY LIST, SITIO TABUK, POBLACION,
BULALACAO, ORIENTAL MINDORO

This refers to the Memorandum dated November 21, 2022 from this Office with the
instruction to prepare CSW regarding the case concerning Lot 478 and 479, Pls 395-D stated
in the letter dated November 15, 2022 from Ms. Marianne Arlene S, Bodegas addressed to
DENR Secretary of Ma. Antonia Yulo-Loyzaga, requesting for a dialogue meeting to be held
on December 12, 2022, 10:00 a.m. at the covered court of Barangay Cambunang, Bulalacao,
Oriental Mindoro. Be informed that the said CSW is still not yet submitted to this Office as of
to date which is purposely for the undersigned to have background on the case prior to
attendance in the meeting,

However, due to the scheduled Full-time Delivery Unit (FDU) on Monday, December
12, 2022, the undersigned could not be able to attend in the invitation of Ms. Bodegas for a
dialogue meeting in Cambunang, Bulalacao.

In this regard, please send a representative from your Office to attend in the meeting
and submit report in CSW format to the undersigned on the status of the case and to what would
be the result of the meeting for further updates to the Regional Office.

For STRICT COMPLIANCE.

Tracking Nos.: 2212000014

TSD/RPS
Tlang-ilang St., Sitio TI, Suqui. Calapan City, Oriental Mindoro
DENR Contact Nos. (043) 288-3017, Tel. Fax No. 288-3006



